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Western Interstate Energy Board and the State-Provincial Steering Committee  

Request for Proposal 

 

Responses to Emerging Changes in Electric Distribution Systems 

in Western States and Provinces 

 

Summary of Responses to Questions Asked  

during the December 5th Conference Call 

 

December 10, 2014 

 

 

The Western Interstate Energy Board (WIEB) held a conference call with prospective bidders to 

the Request for Proposal titled “Responses to Emerging Changes in Electric Distribution 

Systems in Western States and Provinces” on December 5, 2014.  The following is an 

abbreviated summary of the WIEB staff’s responses to the questions asked during the call.  

 

Questions: 

 

1. What data will WIEB and/or SPSC provide? 

 

Other than the background reading for and recording of the session entitled Challenges in the 

Distribution System (8:45 AM; Tuesday October 21, 2014), part of the System Flexibility Forum 

at the CREPC/SPSC/WIRAB meetings in San Diego, WIEB and SPSC will not provide any data 

or other information to the contractor.  These readings and this recording are available on the 

WIEB website. 

 

2. For Task 1, sub-Tasks 2 and 3, what level of assessment will be required? 

 

Both quantitative and qualitative approaches to assessment will be considered.  Proposals that 

include some use of quantitative methods (i.e., with data) will likely be preferred to proposals 

that solely use qualitative methods. 

 

 

3. Given the short timeline available to complete the project, can the bidder choose to 

place greater emphasis on certain Tasks or even eliminate coverage of certain Tasks? 

  

The bidder can emphasize certain Tasks to a greater extent in their proposal; however, the 

Technical Advisory Group deemed all Tasks of interest and completion of all Tasks to be 

feasible.  Bidders may propose additional Tasks or sub-Tasks. 

 

4. Given the short timeline available to complete the project, can the bidder propose 

completion of certain Tasks in a phase to end in April, 2015 with a subsequent phase to 

complete Tasks? 

The entire project must be completed on or before April 30, 2015 because the ARRA funding 

supporting it expires at that time. 

http://westernenergyboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/10-20-22-14SFF-CREPC-SPSC-WIRAB_agenda.pdf
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5. What are the requirements of ARRA funding? 

  

Sub-sections A through RR in the section of the RFP entitled Administrative Information, Terms 

& Conditions reflects ARRA requirements.  WIEB’s standard contract can be found here: 

 

http://westernenergyboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/WIEB_standard_contract.pdf 

Attachment D also refers to ARRA requirements. 

 

6. What level of detail for Task 1, sub-Task 3 is required? 

  

Bidders may propose the level of detail.  High-level or qualitative descriptions of potential 

solutions are acceptable, but this judgment is for the bidder to make.  Bidders must obtain all the 

information and data used for this sub-Task.  WIEB and SPSC will not assist bidders in 

obtaining data. 

 

7. What is the intended audience for the webinars, presentations and report? 

  

The audience consists of public utility commissioners, state energy office directors, and staffs of 

both of these agencies. 

 

 

8. Is it possible for the budget of this project to be increased? 

  

No, available ARRA funding limits the amount of this contract to $70,000. 

 

9. With both ARRA funding and the SPSC expiring in April, 2015, will funding for such 

projects be available after April, 2015? 

 

WIEB hopes to acquire new funding in order to contract for research projects in the future. 

 

10. Does working with utilities on other projects disqualify a company from bidding on this 

RFP? 

  

No, working with utilities on other projects will not disqualify a company or preclude a company 

from submitting a proposal in response to this RFP. 

 

11. Does conducting this project disqualify a company from bidding on future RFPs issued 

by WIEB? 

 

No, we have had contractors conduct more than one project for us. 

 

12. Is the February 15, 2015 deadline for the final report flexible? 

  

http://westernenergyboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/WIEB_standard_contract.pdf
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It is permissible to submit a draft report on February 15, 2015; however, a final report must be 

submitted in mid-April, 2015 in order to permit final accounting before the ARRA funding of 

SPSC expires at the end of April, 2015. 

 

13. What is the difference between utility investments in distribution in Task 1, sub-Task 4, 

and investments in grid modernization in Task 1, sub-Task 5? 

  

Task 1, sub-Task 4, is focused solely on utility investments likely to be made in the next five 

years.  It asks which of these utility investments are likely to be affected or unaffected by 

potential changes in distribution systems over the life of the investments.   

 

Task 1, sub-Task 5, is focused on all investments in grid modernization, whether they are made 

by utilities, end-use customers or other entities.  It asks which of these investments are likely to 

occur in a “business as usual” future, and which investments may require more attention by 

policymakers.  From the utility perspective, changes may develop, for example, as a result of 

normal growth and extension of the distribution system.  From the customer perspective, the 

addition of distributed generation may induce distribution system changes.  We desire that the 

contractor examine both perspectives. 

 

14. What is the time period for this study?  Task 1, sub-Task 1, seems to suggest 10 years, 

whereas Task 1, sub-Task 4 seems to suggest 5 years? 

 

The RFP asks for proposals to identify and evaluate the economic, technological and policy 

forces today and in the next 10 years are likely to reshape electric distribution systems.  A sub-

Task is to identify utility investments that are likely to occur in the next 5 years and to identify 

which of these investments are likely to be affected or unaffected by the forces that are likely to 

reshape distributions systems over the life of the utility investments.  These two tasks are 

consistent and complement one another.  

 

 

15. What is the geographic area for which coverage is expected in the various sub-Tasks of 

Task 1? 

  

The geographic area to be covered is comprised of the distribution systems located within the 

Western Interconnection. For sub-Task 7, summarizing  the Germany and Hawaii experiences 

should focus on lessons that are applicable in the Western Interconnection. 

 

16. Is an in-person presentation required for Task 4? 

  

Yes, it is required that the contractor make an in-person presentation at the spring 2015 meetings 

of CREPC/SPSC/WIRAB. 

 

17. What are examples of “offers of in-kind services from the bidder’s organization” (See 

Section 5.10 Evaluation of Proposals)? 

 

One example is the use of the bidder’s webinar hosting service.  
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18. Is offering work valued in excess of $70,000 an example of in-kind services? 

 

Work valued in excess of $70,000 could be an example of offering in-kind services, if the bidder 

provides sufficient detail and deliverables to support the excess valuation of the services.  This 

in-kind service will also need to be included in invoices submitted for the project.  

 

19. How many webinars will be required of the contractor? 

 

One or perhaps two webinars for all SPSC members and other state staff will be required during 

execution of this project.  Additional webinars (e.g., dry run of conference presentation) will 

likely occur, but will only include the contractor, WIEB staff and the advisory committee. 

 

20. Will proposals and final reports be available only to select groups (e.g., SPSC) or 

publicly-available? 

  

The final report of the contractor will be publicly-available on the WIEB website, as required by 

ARRA funding.  All proposals, also per ARRA requirements, must be publicly-available upon 

request.  If a bidder identifies certain portions of their proposal as proprietary (e.g., an economic 

model) at the time of proposal submission, then proprietary portions will not be made publicly-

available.  Please see Administrative Information, Terms & Conditions, Part M, of the RFP for 

details of how to designate portions of a proposal as proprietary. 

 

21. Will cost-benefit analysis be required to support policy recommendations of the 

contractor? 

  

No, cost-benefit analysis is not required.  However, all policy recommendations should be 

supported by logical rationale and analysis.   


